
 

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Janet Senior 
Acting Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Thursday 11 January 2018 

 

 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

 

Date: TUESDAY, 23 JANUARY 2018 at 7.05 pm 
 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 

 
Enquiries to:  Olga Cole 
Telephone:    0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
Email:   olga.cole@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor Alan Hall Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee L 
Councillor Gareth Siddorn Vice Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee L 
Councillor Liam Curran Chair of Sustainable Development Select Committee L 
Councillor Carl Handley Chair of Housing Select Committee L 
Councillor John Muldoon Chair of Healthier Communities Select Committee L 
Councillor Maja Hilton Chair of Public Accounts Select Committee L 
Councillor Jim Mallory Labour Group Representative L 
Councillor Liz Johnston-
Franklin 

Labour Group Representative L 

Councillor Pauline Morrison Chair of Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee L 
Councillor Luke Sorba Chair of Children and Young People Select Committee L 

This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the open agenda may 
be audio recorded and/or filmed 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes 
 

1 - 5 

2.   Declarations of Interests 
 

6 - 9 

3.   Outstanding Scrutiny Items 
 

10 

4.   Notification of Late and Urgent Items 
 

11 

5.   Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018 
 

12 - 18 

6.   Overview & Scrutiny Select Committees Work Programmes 2017-18 - 
verbal update 
 

 

7.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

19 

8.   Decision made by Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018 
 

20 - 22 

9.   Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) on 10 January 2018 
 

23 - 24 

10.   Decision made by an Executive Director Under Delegated Authority - 
Carers Information Advice and Support Service - Extension of Contract 
2018 
 

25 - 34 



 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

Minutes  

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 1 

Ward 
 

All 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 23 January 2018  

 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended that the minutes of that part of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Business Panel which was open to the press and public, held on 19 December 
2017 be confirmed and signed. 
 

 

 
                         
 
 

  

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

Tuesday, 19 December 2017 at 7.05 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Alan Hall (Chair), John Muldoon, Maja Hilton, Jim Mallory, 
Liz Johnston-Franklin and Luke Sorba 
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Gareth Siddorn, Councillor Liam 
Curran and Councillor Pauline Morrison 
 
 
51. Minutes 

 
Beckenham Place Park Regeneration Update 
 
A briefing was tabled at the meeting to update Panel Members on progress 
following their request for officers to review the Council’s Lettings and Disposal 
Procedures. The Chair said he was pleased that this work was being done as it 
was necessary to ensure best practice was being followed. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the open meeting held on 28 November 2017 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 
 
 

52. Declarations of Interests 
 
None reported. 
 

53. Outstanding Scrutiny Items 
 
Report noted. 
 

54. Notification of Late and Urgent Items 
 
Report noted. 
 

55. Decisions Made by Mayor and Cabinet on 6 December 2017 
 
Lewisham Future Programme 2018/19 Revenue Budget Savings 
 
The Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report. 
 
The Chair said as expected there was a large overspend which if not addressed 
could be an issue in future. He asked if plans had been put in place to tackle this. 
 
Panel Members were informed that there was a predicted £30m overspend this 
year of which £7m has not yet been achieved, with additional savings of £10m to 
be made each year beyond 2020. Officers were expecting the consortium for fair 
funding to change things next year and a response was expected from the Council Page 2



 
 
 

2 

before March 2018. 
 
Business Panel was also informed that officers were currently planning to achieve 
£33m savings by 2020, and believed the majority of the £7m savings for this year 
would be achieved, and £5m of savings was targeted to be made next year 
although this would leave the Council with a savings gap. 
 
The Chair said there were a number of issues that were affecting the savings plan 
mainly the increasing cost of social care, and projected failures of the investment 
markets. He asked how the Council would address this. Panel Members were told 
that as part of the Council’s risk register officers were aware of these issues and 
were looking at the impact on services and the Council’s capacity was being 
monitored constantly. The Head of Corporate Resources said officers were also 
looking at fostering provision to ensure that dependency on private provision was 
reduced. 
 
Councillor Johnston-Franklin said children social care would continue to be 
overspent and this area would need long term management and constant 
monitoring. The Head of Corporate Resources said officers were looking at 
medium term changes that would need to be made.  
 
Councillor Mallory asked whether the Council would need to change its savings 
strategy as it had been difficult to achieve its projected savings to date. The Head 
of Corporate Resources said £17m projected savings was the worse case 
scenario, but officers were constantly monitoring the situation and the way the 
Council delivers services was constantly being reviewed and revised to ensure 
that savings were being made wherever possible. He added that all local 
authorities were in similar position. The Head of Corporate Resources said it was 
also likely that the new administration would prioritise different service provision. 
 
Councillor Mallory said at this stage it was very important to prioritise income 
generation, and asked for an update of what had been achieved to date and if 
targets had been met. The Chair asked how officers intended to deal with the 
additional pressures of salary increase and Brexit. 
 
The Head of Corporate Resources said officers would need to address this 
additional pressure and they would obtain advise on the effect of inflation, credit 
ratings, interest rates, and would keep assessing the situation, as things look very 
challenging for the future. The Chair said Panel Members would have to decide 
how they could influence the budget policy of the next Administration. He thanked 
officers for the report. 
 
RESOLVED that the decision of the Mayor be noted. 
 
Introduction of a New Public Space Protection Order 
 

The Strategic Community Safety Services Manager introduced the report. 
 
The Chair said this was a timely review as the new Legislation would have 
superseded officers previous proposals. The Chair said Panel Members wanted to 
know how effective the protection order was, and how it was being monitored. The 

Page 3



 
 
 

3 

Strategic Community Safety Services Manager explained to Panel Members how 
the order was been  enforced both by the Police and Council officers.  
 
The Chair said he understood the Council was under huge pressure to address 
this issue and it would be good for Panel Members to see the enforcement 
strategy and its effectiveness. The Strategic Community Safety Services Manager 

said officers were thinking of streamlining the order. They would work on separate 
elements and review them separately. 
 
The Chair said down by the Pool River Linear Park there was a constant problem 
with unauthorised encampment, and asked what could be done to prevent this. 
The Strategic Community Safety Services Manager said travelling encampment 
issues have always been problematic but officers were dealing with this by 
directing offenders where they would get the necessary support.  
 
Councillor Muldoon commented on the Council working with licensing premises to 
assist in preventing drunken behaviour. Councillor Sorba said it would be more 
positive, and accepted by residents if elected members were seen to be doing this 
work rather than police officers. Councillor Johnston-Franklin asked for an 
explanation of unauthorised encampment without reasonable excuse. This was 
explained by the Strategic Community Safety Services Manager.   
 
Councillor Sorba said Safer, Stronger Communities Select Committee could look 
at this Order in detail and report back to the Panel on its implementation and 
effectiveness. It was agreed that Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 
would be asked whether they would want to do a review on this Order. 
 
The Chair said there had been some complaints about cyclists behaviour, officers 
acknowledged this. Councillor Muldoon asked whether this order would cover 
oxide canisters, the Strategic Community Safety Services Manager said he would 
check and get back to him. 
 
Action >>>>>> ED Community Services 
 
The Chair thanked officers for the report. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
i.  the decision of the Mayor be noted. 
ii. the Chair of  SSSC be asked whether the Select Committee would like to 
    review this order. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

56. Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees Work Programmes - 2017-18 - 
verbal update 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

4 

The Scrutiny Manager introduced the report and informed Panel Members that 
most of the Select Committees in-depth reviews had been completed except that 
of Healthier Communities, and Housing Select Committees. 
 
Panel Members were informed that Parliament’s Communities and Local 
Government Select Committee had issued its report and recommendations arising 
from its review of overview and scrutiny. The main message of the report was that 
local government scrutiny plays an important role in ensuring accountability 
although sometimes there were barriers stopping scrutiny from being as effective 
as it could be.  
 
The report suggested that parity of esteem between the executive and scrutiny 
was very important, as well as proper access to information and adequate 
resourcing. It also suggested that the scrutiny of commercial partners needed 
proper attention to ensure public accountability. 
 
The Chair suggested that a response should be drafted adding that to improve 
Scrutiny’s submission, local as well as national issues should be included. 
 
Councillor Muldoon informed Panel Members that the Chair of Public Scrutiny’s 
report has been published. The Chair thanked Scrutiny officers for all their hard 
work during the past year, despite the difficult times. 
 
 

57. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Noted. 
 

58. Decision made by Mayor and Cabinet on 6 December 2017 
 
This item was not identified for further discussion. 
 

59. Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) on 6 December 2017 
 
This item was not identified for further discussion. 
 

60. Decision made by an Executive Director Under Delegated Authority - 
Contract Award for the SE London No First Night Out Homelessness 
Prevention Service 
 
This item was not identified for further discussion. 
 

61. Contract Award for Support Services for Young People with Housing and 
Support Needs 
 
This item was not identified for further discussion. 
 
 
 
Meeting ended 8.30pm                          Chair ………………. 
 

Page 5



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\7\6\ai00018676\$bmqmdbrb.doc 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 2 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 23 January 2018 

 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct :-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 
 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 

gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\7\6\ai00018676\$bmqmdbrb.doc 

 

partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register 
the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which 

you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence 
of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be 
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close 
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area 
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests  (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school 
at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
 
(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity  and in any 

Page 7



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\7\6\ai00018676\$bmqmdbrb.doc 

 

event before the matter is considered.  The declaration will be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary 
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter 
and withdraw from the room before it is considered.  They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the 
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an 
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a 
fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, 
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless 
paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest.  If so, the member must 
withdraw  and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would 
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to 
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a 
registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests.  These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk 
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such 
interest need not be registered.  Members with such an interest are referred to 
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing 
so.  These include:- 

 

Page 8



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\7\6\ai00018676\$bmqmdbrb.doc 

 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the 
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears 
exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 9



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

Outstanding Scrutiny Items 
 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No. 3  

Ward n/a 
 

Contributors 
 

Head of Business and Committee 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 23 January 2018 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

There are no items previously reported to the Mayor for response by 
directorates. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel 
 

Report Title 
 

Notification of Late and Urgent Items 
 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No. 4 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Head of Business and Committee 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 23 January 2018 

 
I. None to report. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



                                                  OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet at the on 10 January 2018 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No.  5 
 

Ward 
 

All 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive/Head of Business and Committee 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 23 January 2018 

 
1. Recommendation 

 
To consider key decisions made by the Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018 
which will come in to force on 24 January 2018. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Mayor and Cabinet considered the following key decisions on 10 January 2018. 
 

2.2 The notice of the decision made in respect of the report is attached as an 
Appendix. Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, members 
may call in an executive decision within 7 days. If this report is not called in 
they will come into force on 24 January 2018 
 
i. Council Tax Base 2018-19 
ii. Annual Complaints Report 
iii. Local Development Scheme 
iv. Statement of Community Involvement 
v. Alterations and Extensions SPD 
vi. Working in the Private Rented Sector 
vii. Review of the NNDR discretionary discount scheme 
viii. Wide Horizons 
ix. London Business Rates Pilot Pool 
x. New Homes Programme Update Part 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
The Mayor made the following decisions 10 January 2018. These decisions 
will become effective on 24 January 2018 unless called in by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Business Panel on 23 January 2018. 
 
1. Setting the Council Tax Base, the NNDR Tax Base & Discounts for 

Second Homes and Empty Homes 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Resources, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Mayor agreed 
that: 

 
(1) the Council Tax Base calculation for 2018/19, as set out in the 
annual Council Tax Base government return be noted; 

 
(2) Council be recommended to agree a Council Tax Base of 86,456.6 
Band D equivalent properties for 2018/19; 

 
(3) Council be recommended to agree a budgeted Council Tax 
collection rate of 96.0%; 

 
(4) Council be recommended to agree the introduction of a 
discretionary Council Tax discount of 100% for care leavers up to the 
age of 25; 
(5) Council be recommended to agree that the existing policy of a 0% 
discount for second homes for 2017/18 be continued for 2018/19;  

 
(6) Council be recommended to agree that the existing policy of a 0% 
discount for empty homes Class A (an empty property undergoing 
structural alteration or major repair to make it habitable) be continued; 

 
(7) Council be recommended to agree that the existing policy of a 
100% discount awarded for a period of four weeks and then a 0% 
discount thereafter, for empty homes – Class C (a substantially empty 
and unfurnished property) be continued; 

 
(8) Council be recommended to agree that the existing policy of an 
empty homes premium of 50% in respect of long term empty properties 
be continued; 

 

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE AT 
THE MAYOR & CABINET  

 

 

Page 13



(9) Council be recommended to agree consistent with the approach 
taken in 2017/18, to implement the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
(CTRS) to reflect reductions in the Council’s funding, but simplify the 
process by replacing the reduction in the Settlement Funding 
Assessment with: 

 

and decreases as have happened to date) 
 

want to make to the budget by changing the percentage alongside 
other savings being considered. 

 
(10) Council be recommended to agree that a 25% liability is passed 
onto working age CTRS recipients in 2018/19 as detailed in section 11 
of this report. 

 
(11) Council be recommended to agree to note the proposed 2018/19 
National Non Domestic Rate (NNDR) estimated net yield of £66.3m, 
based on current information available. 

 
(12) Council be recommended to agree to delegate the approval of the 
final 2018/19 NNDR1 form to the Executive Director for Resources and 
Regeneration for submission by the deadline of 31st January 2018. 

 
2. Annual Complaints Report 2016-17 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Policy and Performance, Councillor Joe Dromey, the 
Mayor agreed that the report be noted. 

 
3. Local Development Scheme (LDS) 2018 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Deputy 
Mayor, Councillor Alan Smith, the Mayor agreed that: 

 
(1) the revised content and timetable of the Local Development 
Scheme in Annex 1 be approved and subject to confirmation that it is 
not intended to direct any changes, publication and placement on the 
Council’s website be approved; 

 
(2) the Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration be 
authorised to make any minor changes to the text and format of the 
documents prior to publication. 

 
(3) the report be referred to Council for information. 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



4. Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2018 
 
Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Deputy 
Mayor, Councillor Alan Smith, the Mayor agreed that: 
 
(1) the revised content (Appendix 1) and timetable of the SCI (Section 
9) be approved and subject to confirmation that it is not intended to 
direct any changes, the draft SCI go out to public consultation. 
 
(2) the Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration be 
authorised to make any minor changes to the text and format of the 
documents prior to publication; and 

 
(3) the report be referred to Council for information. 

 
5. Alterations and Extensions Supplementary Planning Document 

(SPD) 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Deputy 
Mayor, Councillor Alan Smith, the Mayor agreed that: 

 
(1) the content of the draft Alterations and Extensions SPD be 
approved and subject to confirmation that it is not intended to direct 
any changes, recommend that the draft Extensions and Alterations 
SPD go out to formal public consultation in accordance with the 
Statement of Community Involvement. 

 
(2) the Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration be 
authorised to make any minor changes to the text and format of the 
documents prior to publication; and 

 
(3) the report be referred to Council for information. 

 
6. Working in the Private Rented Sector. 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Housing, Councillor Damien Egan, the Mayor agreed that: 

 
(1) the proposal, supported by Housing Select Committee, to develop a 
business case that considers the extension of the existing licensing 
schemes to include a targeted selected licensing scheme be approved; 
 
(2) the introduction of the Civil Penalty Notices as an additional tool to 
tackle poor practice in the Private Rented Sector as supported by 
Housing Select Committee and as per the details set out in paragraph 
5.3 and charges in Appendix 2, be approved; 
 
(3) the Housing Select Committees recommendation for the PSHA to 
further promote the work of the team and engage with landlords and 
tenants to help eradicate bad practice in the sector be approved. 

Page 15



 
 
7. Review of the National Non Domestic Rates – discretionary 

discount scheme for businesses accredited to Living Wage 
Foundation. 

 
Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Resources, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Mayor agreed 
that: 

 
(1) a one off discount in NNDR be offered based on the cost of 
accreditation in 2018/19 to businesses that become accredited by the 
Living Wage Foundation during 2018/19 and who meet the criteria set 
out in appendix 1 

 
(2) the discount be offered on a ‘first come first served’ basis until the 
Council’s overall contribution equals £20,000 within the financial period 
2016 to 2019. Once the Council’s £20,000 contribution has been 
reached no further discounts will be offered. 

 
(3) the scheme be reviewed in 2018/19 to determine whether it should 
be offered in future years. 

 
8. Wide Horizons Refinancing 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Resources, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Mayor agreed 
that: 

 
(1) the business case for offering a refinancing facility to Wide 
Horizons, the conditions and offer proposed, and the State Aid 
considerations that apply be noted; 

 
(2) the Council offer an interest bearing re-financing facility of up to 
£700,000 to Wide Horizons to be paid back over a period of no more 
than 25 years, subject to Wide Horizons obtaining an equal amount of 
re-financing from the Royal Borough of Greenwich; and 

 
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Resources and 
Regeneration to finalise the terms of the re-financing agreement with 
Wide Horizons, working with the Royal Borough of Greenwich. 

 
9. London Business Rates Pilot Pool 2018-19 
 

Having considered an officer report and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Resources, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Mayor agreed 
that: 

 
(1) Council be recommended to approve and accept the designation by 
the Secretary of State as an authority within the London Business 

Page 16



Rates Pilot Pool pursuant to 34(7)(1) of Schedule 7B Local 
Government Finance Act 1988; 
 
(2) Council be recommended to participate in the London Business 
Rates Pilot Pool with effect from 1 April 2018 

 
(3) Council be recommended to delegate the authority's administrative 
functions as a billing authority pursuant to the Non-Domestic Rating 
(Rates Retention) Regulations 2013, to the City of London Corporation 
("COLC") acting as the Lead Authority; 

 
(4) Council be recommended to authorise the Lead Authority to sub-
contract certain ancillary administrative functions [regarding the 
financial transactions [payment of tariffs and top-ups] within the Pool to 
the GLA as it considers expedient]; 

 
(5)  Council be recommended to delegate authority to the Executive 
Director for Resources and Regeneration to agree the operational 
details of the pooling arrangements with the participating authorities; 
 
(6) Council be recommended to delegate authority to the Executive 
Director for Resources and Regeneration, in consultation with the Head 
of Legal Services, to enter into such Memorandum of Understanding 
with the ‘participating authorities’ as may be necessary, (including if 
and where appropriate) amending, finalising and executing the same 
on behalf of the authority; 
 
(7) Council be recommended to authorise the Mayor to represent the 
authority in relation to consultations regarding the London Business 
Rates Pilot Pool consultative as may be undertaken by the Lead 
Authority pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding; 
 
(8)  Council be recommended to delegate to Mayor and Cabinet the 
authority to consider such consultative reports as the Lead Authority 
may circulate and to respond on behalf of the authority with regard to 
any recommendations and in particular, proposals for projects to be 
approved for funding from the Strategic Investment Pot. 

 
(9) Council be recommended to delegate to the Lead Authority the 
functions of assessment, due consultation and approval of projects 
eligible for funding from the Pool's Strategic Investment Pot following 
consultation with the participating authorities (provided that at least two 
thirds of such participating London Boroughs are (including the City of 
London Corporation) in favour of the relevant recommendation as well 
as the Mayor of London, and that no entire sub-region is in 
disagreement with the decision) on such terms and conditions as shall 
ensure value for money and compliance with the law. 

 
10. New Homes Programme Update 
 

Page 17



Having considered an open and a confidential officer report and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Housing, Councillor Damien 
Egan, the Mayor agreed that: 

 
(1) the progress update on the New Homes, Better Places Programme 
be noted; 
 
(2) the design development and consultation which has been carried 
out on the proposed development at Edward Street, be noted; 

 
(3) having considered the responses to the consultation on the 
proposed development at Edward Street, the Council should proceed 
to submit a planning application to deliver 34 new homes for temporary 
accommodation; 

 
(4) the business case for providing new homes for temporary 
accommodation, as set out in the confidential report, be noted; 

 
(5) an application be made to the Secretary of State for Education 
under Schedule 1 of the Academies Act 2010 for the disposal of the 
site on a lease to provide temporary accommodation, as set out in the 
confidential report 

 
(6) the capital budget required to deliver the new homes at Edward 
Street be approved as set out in the confidential report 

 
 

 
Janet Senior 
Acting Chief Executive, 
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU 
11 Janaury 2018 
 

Page 18



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\1\8\6\ai00018681\$gsx223c0.doc 

 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 7 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 23 January 2018 

 
 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as amended by the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2006:- 

  

   
          8. Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018. 
          9. Decision made by Mayor and Cabinet (Contract) on 10 January 2018. 
        10. Decision made by an Executive Director Under Delegated Authority: Carers 
              Information Advice and Support Service – Extension of Contract 2018 
         
 

      
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Document is Restricted

Page 20

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Outstanding Scrutiny Items
	4 Notification of Late and Urgent Items
	5 Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018
	7 Exclusion of the Press and Public
	8 Decision made by Mayor and Cabinet on 10 January 2018
	9 Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) on 10 January 2018
	10 Decision made by an Executive Director Under Delegated Authority - Carers Information Advice and Support Service - Extension of Contract 2018

